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INDEPEMNDENT AUDITORS REPORT Fax: +21 (044) 6688 5050

To The Members of Flora Business Support Services Limited
{Formeriy known as Westland Limited)
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financlal statements of Fiora Business
Support Services Limited (formerly known as Westland Limited) (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2017, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financlal position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility alse Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that glve a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
sign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
luating the appropriateness of the accounting policles used and the reasonableness of
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the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financlal statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2017, and its profit, total comprehensive income/ loss, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as It appears from our examination of those books and the reports
of the other auditors,

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director In tarms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Audltors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements; Refer Note 27 (b} to the Ind AS

financial statements
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i,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

The Company has provided requisite disclosures In the financial statements
as regards Its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the
Notification $.0. 3407{E) dated the 8th November, 2016 of the Ministry of
Finance, during the period from 8" November 2016 to 30% December 2016;
and such disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintalned by the Company, Refer Note 9 to the Ind AS Financial
Statements.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the

Order,

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10% May, 2017

For DELOITTE HASKINS AND SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No. 0080725}
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Geetha Surye @ayana
artnei
(Membership No. 29519}
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ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT )
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ Section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
{i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fiora Business
Support Services Limited {(formerly known as Westland Limited) ("the Company*”)
as of 315t March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’'s Rasponsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliabie financial infermation, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibifity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of Internal financlal controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit Invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financlal controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financlal controls over financlal reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of Internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
materlal misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
ver financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting Is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financlal statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deterlorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all materlal respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financlal reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31% March 2017, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS AND SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No.0080725)
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Geetha Suryan rayangm

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10% May, 2017
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Raquirements’ of our roport of even date)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(viiy

In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment / fixed assets,

(b) The property, plant & equipment / fixed assets were physically verified during the
year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification,
which in our oplnton, provides for physical verification of all the property, plant &
equipment / fixed assets at reasonable intervals, According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and
disclosed as property, plant & equipment / fixed asset in the financial statements,
the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the
lessee in the agreement.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasohable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification. However there is no inventory balance as at the year ended 318t
March 2017,

The Company has not granted any leans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore the requirement of clause 3 (iii}{a)
and (Hi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect
of making investments, The Company has, however, not granted any loans and provided
any guarantees during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regutar in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues In arrears as at March 31,
2017 for a perlod of more than six months from the date they became payable.



Delnitle
Masking & Sefls

{c) Details of dues of Income-tax and Value Added Tax which have not been depasited
as on 31t March 2017 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of | Nature | Forum where Pericd to Amount Amounts
Statute | of Dues ! Dispute is which the Involved net paid
pending Amount of amounts . | under |
Relates paid under protest |
protest (Rs. In | (Rs. in
Lakhs) lakhs) |

Commissioner | A.Y. 2005-06 | 1,486,084
of Income Tax

 (Appeals) I S
Income | Income F.Y, 2011-12 82,000 -
Tax Act, | Tax Commercial
Tax Officer

1961

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations glven to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks, The
Company has not borrowed from financlal institutions and has not issued any debentures
during the current year,

{ix) The term loan have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for
which they were obtained. The Company has not raised moneys by way of Initial public
offer / further public offer.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reporting during the year.

(xI)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid /
provided for managerial remuneration and hence reporting under Clause 3(xi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiiy The Company Is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii} of the
Order is not applicabie.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company Is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all bansactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards,

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under
. clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

%,
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(xv} Inour opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered Into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable,

{xvi} The Company is not requirad to be registered under Sectlon 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No. 0080725)

&
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Geetha Suséan rayanél
~(Partnar..

(Membership No.29519)
Place: Mumbai
Date; 10" May, 2017




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMATED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017

®

{in Rupees)
i As At 31st March | As At 31stMarch | As At 1st April
Particulars Notes
2017 2016 2015
1. ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 14,198 1,991,123 3,239,696
Other intangible assets 3 88,102 709,857 461,100
Financial assets -
fi) Investments 4 280,162,540 498,994 -
(i) Other financial assets 5 1,420,240 2,248,095 2,309,480
Qther non-current assets 6 567,813 1,205,911
Total Non-Current Assets [A} 281,685,080 6,016,882 7,220,187
Current Assets
inventories 7 - 20,978,691 20,831,293
Financial Assets
(i} Currentinvestments 8 46,395,538 60,574,466 -
(iij Trade and other receivables 9 - 92,073,536 £4,040,583
{iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,465,465 1,647,940 248,302
(iv} Other financial ussets 11 - 354,077 132,129
Other current assets 12 2,700,865 105,855,280 89,070,918
Total Current Assets (B) 50,561,868 281,484,990 174,323,225
Total assets {A+B) 332,246,948 287,501,872 181,543,412
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 13 2,835,010 2,835,010 2,835,000
b} Gther Equity 320,412,746 68,941,761 1119,342,163)
Total Equity [C) 323,247,756 71,776,771 {116,507,163)
Mon-current liabilities
financial Liabilities
(1) Long-term borrowings 14 - - 135,113,345
it} Lang-term provisions 15 45,505 1,301,055 967,037
Total non-current liabilities {D) 45,505 1,301,055 136,080,382
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i} Short Term Borrowings 15 - 94,893,062 56,674,308
(i) Trade and other payables 17 6,416,778 88,597,576 85,507,305
Other current liabilities 18 1,570,544 28,053,478 17,659,437
Short-term provisions 19 108,993 2,479,930 2,129,143
Current tax liabilities tax {net) 20 857,372
Total current liabilities {E) 8,953,687 214,424,046 161,970,193
Total Liabilities {F) = (D+E) 8,999,192 215,725,101 298,050,575
Total Equity and Liabilities (C+F) 332,246,948 287,501,872 181,543,412
See accompanying notes forming part of the finonciol stotements
In terms of our report attached For and ont bf}alg of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells E - “/ s "
Chartered Accountants Chy it
Directors —en

Geetha Suryanarayanan
Partner

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May,2017
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2017

particulars Notes Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March
2017 2016

[Revenues
Revenue from operations 21 30,500 162,991
Other Income 22 8,441,178 620,050
Total Income {A} 8,471,678 783,041
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 1,785,021 1,756,688
Depreciation and amortization expense 3 32,320 51,720
Other expenses 24 12,592,637 3,925,433
Total expenses |[B) 14,413,978 5,733,841
Loss before tax (C) = (A-B) ) (5,242,300} {4,950,800)
Income taxes !
- Current tax - -
- Deferred tax - -
Loss for the year from continuing operation 15,942,300} {4,950,800)
Profit/(loss} from discontinued operations N
Loss before tax from discontinued operatiens {57,271,854) {57,673,614)
Profit on disposal of business en siump sale 384,733,855 -
Tax expense of discontinued opearation cndi 169,750,000)
Profit /(loss) from discontinued operation after tax 257,712,001 {57,673,614)
Profit /{loss) for the year 251,769,701 (62,624,414)
Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (298,716) (702,725}
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of tax {E} [298,7186) {702,725)
Tatal Comprehensive ncome / {loss} for the year (D +E ) 251,470,985 (63,327,139}
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation}:
{1} Basic {0.52} {0.65)
{2) Diluted (052} {0.65)
|Earnings per equity share (for discontinuing operation):
{1) Basic 22.5% (7.63}
{2) Diluted 22.59 (7.63}
Earnings per equity share [for Total Operation):
(1) Basic 22,07 (8.28)
{2) Diluted 22,07 {8.28)
See accompanying notes forming port of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Y

artered Accountants i %/ o A::'.f'ﬂ/ _(Mﬁ;{g_
Géetha Suryanarayana
Padtner Directors —=<
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Place : Mumbai Company Secratary

Date :10th May,2017
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FICRA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Waestland Limited }
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st March 2017,

{ it Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2917 3i1st March 2016
A. Cash flow from operating activitles
Net Praift/ (Loss} before extracrdinary items and tax 321,519,701 (62,624,414}
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amertisation 32,320 1,193,841
Loass/ (profit) on sale of assets - 12,864
Gratuity and compensated absences 684,803
Provision for bad and doubtful trade receivables {net} 3,181,614 2,252,231
Provision for doubtful royalty advances 2,390,713
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (298,716} {702,725)
Unrealised foreign exchange variation - Net 89,622 1,555,367
Interast expense - 32,720,178
Bad trade receivables, advances and deposits written off - - 4,172,195
Galn on sale of tnvestment {6,411,237) -
Liakilities no fonger required written back (Net of exp ) {1,787,693) 500,432
Unrealised gain on revaluation of mutuat fund - (574,466)
interest incoms {163,014} (21,156)
Operating loss before working capital changes ' 316,162,597 (18,440,137}
Changes In working capital:
Adjustments for fincrease) / decreose in operating nssets:
nventories 20,978,691 (147,398)
Trade receivables 58,802,300 36,012,746}
Cther current financial assets 354,077 {221,544
Other non current fancial assets 827,855 61,385
Other current assats 103,155,415 {19,176,076)
Adjustments for increase / {decrease) in operating licbilities:
Long term llabilities - -
Long term Provisions (1,253,550} -
Trade payables {80,793,107) 2,989,840
Other current Habilities {26,482,934) 10,394,041
Short-tarm Pravisions {2,370,937) -
Cash genesated from oparations 419,378,407 {60,553,035)

Incame taxes pald {net of refund, if any) (68,324,815) £42,098

Net cash flow used In aperating actlvities {A) 351,053,592 {59,910,937)
B. Cash flow from investing activities

payment for progerty, plant and equipment 2,566,352 {244 860)
lavestment in Subsidiary {280,152,540) (499,994}

[nvestment in Mutual funds {46,395,538) {60,000,000}
Proceeds from sale of [nvestments 67,485,697 -
Praceeds from disposal of PPE - 37,969
nterest received 163,014 21,156
Net cash flow from / {used in) investing activities (B} (256,343,005} {60,685,729)

C. Cash flow from fitancing activities
Met Proceeds from issua of Equity Shares {including Securitias premium) 320
Net Proceeds from issue of preference shares {(including securities premium)

230,137,041

{Repayment}/Net Procceds of Long Term Borrowings{Net) - (113,639,633}
{Rapayment}/Net Procceds of Short Term Borrowings(Net) {94,893,062) 38,218,754
Interest pald - {32,720,178)
Net cash flow from financing activitles (C) {284,893,062) 121,936,304
Net increase / {decrease)} in Cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {182,475) 1,399,638
Cash and cash equivalents at the béginning of the year 1,647,940 48,302
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 1,455,465 1,447,940
Recancillation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 1,465,465 1,647,940
Restricted balances placed In deposit acceunts {refer note ii) - 200,000
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 1,465,465 1,447,940

Notes:

(i) The Cash Flow Statement refiects the combined cash flows pertaining to continuing and discontinuing operations.
{if) These earmarked account balances with banks can be utilised anly for the specific identified purposes.

In terms of our report attached
For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells A L=

Directors—=

eeha Suayanan [ i
Hartner fo . Al O
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&\\NN“
Campaily Secretary

Place : Mumbal
Date :10th May,2017
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FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED &,.ﬁ
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2017,

a. Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
artie March 2017 | March 2016
Balance at the beginning of the year 28,35,010 28,35,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year - 10
Balance at the end of the year 28,35,010 28,35,010
(i} Details of shareholders
As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016 As at Ist April 2015
% holding in % holding in .
5 holding i
Name of Shareholder No of Shares that cfass of No of Shares | that class of Mo of Shares 7% holding in that
class of shares
shares shares
Equity Shares:
Trent timited 28,35,010 100.00% 28,35,000 95.89% 28,34,995 98.99%
Amazon.Com NV Investment Holdings LLC - 10 0.01% - 0.00%
Other individual shareholders - - 5 0.01%
28,35,010 100.0G% 28,35,010 100.00% 28,35,000 100.00%
Optionally Convertitle Preference Shares
Trent Limited - - 4,93,16,400 100.00%
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
Trent Limited - - 13,00,00,000 100.00%
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
Trent Limited
0.001% Compulsorily Convertibie Preference Shares Serles A 29,69,490 34.64%
0.001%Compulsorily Converiible Preference Shares Series B 56,03,638 65.36% 56,03,638 65.36%
Amazan.Com NV Investment Holdings ELC -
0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series A - 0.00% 29,69,430 34.64%
0.001%Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series 8 - 0.00%
85,73,128 0.00% 85,73,128 34.64% -
(it} Details of shares held by Holding Company
Ag at 3Est March 2017 As at 31st March 2016 As at ist April 2015
% halding in % holding in -
% hoiding in that
Name of Shareholder No af Shares that class of No of Shares | that class of No of Shares
class of shares
shares shares
Equity Shares:
Treat Limited 28,35,010 1C0.00% 28,35,010 100.00% 28,35,000 100.60%
Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) - 0.00% - 0.00% 4,93,16,400 100.G0%
Trent Limited
Redeemahle Mon-Cumulative Preference Shares
Trent Limited - 0.00% - 13,00,060,000 100.C0%
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
Trent Limited
0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series A 56,03,638 100.00% 56,03,638 100.00%
0.001%Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series B 29,69,490 100.00%

{iii) Terms/rights attached to the shares
The Company has issued equity shares having a par value of Re. 1 per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive

remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Cptionally Convertible Preference Shares

(i} The Optionally Convertitle Preference shares have a face value of Re. 1 each,

(ii) The Dpticnally Convertible Preference shares shail carry a preferrential right of dividend of 10% p.a.
(i) The holders of the Optionally Convertible Preference Shares shali be given an option to cenvert each OCPS of Re. 1/- each into equity share of Re. 1/- each at any paint of
time. If any of the holders de not exercise the option to convert their CCPS into equity shares then such cutstanding OCPS shall get redeemed on the expiry gf5-yagss from the
date allotment of such OCPS. s .

{iv) The Company redeemed 10% 49,316,400 Optionally convertible Preference shares of Re.1 each, amounting to Rs. 49,316,400 on 11th Feb 2016.

Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
(i} The Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference shares have a face value of Re. 1 each,
{ii) The Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference shares shall carry a preferrential right of dividend of 10% p.a.




(iif} The Redeemable Preference Shares shall be redeemed on or before the expiry of three years from the date of allotment of such preference shares at the d'\sc?((etion of the

Board of Directors of the Company.
{iv) The Company redeemed 10% 130,000,000 Redeemable Non convertible Preferance shares of Re.1 each, amounting to Rs. 130,000,000 on 11th Feb 2016.

(v} On 11th February 2016 the company issued 0.001% 2,969,490 Compulsorily Convertible preference shares(Series A) of Re.1 each at a premium of Rs, 31/- per share,
amounting to Rs. 85,023,680 to Amazon.Com NV tnvestment Holdings LLC in terms of Sharehalders agreement dated February 9, 2016.

(vl} On 11th February 2016 the company issued 0.001% 56,03,638 Comgpulsorily Convertible preference shares(Series B) of Re.1 each at a premium of Rs, 31/- per share,
amounting to Rs. 179,216,416 to its Holding company, Trent Limited.

{vi) Terms/rights attached to the Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares - Series A

(i} Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares have a face value of Re. 1 each,

(i) The Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares shal! carry a right of dividend of 0.001% p.a. and the same will be accumutated once dividend is deciared.

{#ii) The Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares shall carry priority for deciaration of dividends before any other Sharholder including Series B

{iv) The holders of CCPS Series A shall be entitled to convert all of the shares intc Equity Shares at the conversion price then in effect in accordance with the terms of the

agreement.

Compuisorily Convertible Preference Shares - Series B

{i} Compulsorily Convertibie Preference shares have a face value of Re, 1 each,

{ii) The Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares shall carry a right of dividend of 0.001% p.a. and the same will be accumufated once dividend is declzred.

(iti) The Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares shal! carry priority for dedaration of dividends before any other Sharholder excluding Series A

{iv) The hotders of CCPS Series A shall be entitled to convert all of the shares into Equity Shares at the conversion price then in effect in accordance with the terms of the

agreement.




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited )

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Equity component of . .
) ) Transition Securities } )
compound financial Capital reserve K Generzal reserve | Retained earnings Total
) Reserve premium reserve
instruments
Balance as at 1st April 2015 ) X 76,284,949 8,698,600 16,176,958} 4,265,000 {202,413,754)] (115,342,163}
Lossfortheyear B (63,327,139} {63,327,139)
Unamartised Interest till March 16 for OCPS (20,897,671} {20,897,671)
Unamortised Interest till March 16 for RPS (1,831,672)| (1,831,672}
Convertible preference shares issued during the 0
year
Trent Limited 5,603,638 5,603,638
Amazon.Com NV Investment Holdings LLC 2,968,490 T N _____ 2,569,490
Premium on shares issued during the year o ) 265,767,278 265,767,278
Balance as at 315t March 2016 ' ' 62,128,734 8,698,600 (6,176,958} 265,767,278 4,265,000 {265,740,893) 68,941,761
Total Comprehensive income for the year T o 1 251,470,985 251,470,985
Balance as at 31st March 2017 62,128,734 8,698,600 16,176,958} 265,767,278 4,265,000 (14,269,908} 320,412,746




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Note 1

Company information

Westland Limited {The Company } is a public Limited company domiciled in India. Iis shares are held by Trent Limited { Holding Company},
which is listed in Stock Exchanges. The registered office of the company is located at Silverline Building, No. 61, Alapakkam Main Road,
Maduravoyal, Chennal - 600095,

The company is engaged in publishing and distribution of Books through various Channels across India, along with selling of Digital books
through various Channels.

The name of the company has been changed from Westfand Limited to Fiora Business Support services Limited with effect from 20th April
2017.

Note 2

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation

The financiat statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {ind
AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules,2015 and referred under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resoluticn passed by the Board of Directors on 10th May ,
2017,

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2016 have been prepared as per Ind AS
to give comparative figures for the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 heing the first year for preparation of
Financial statements in accordance with Ind AS.

The financial staternents have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for Certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values or amortised cost, at then end of reporting period {refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency.

2.2 Summay of Significant accounting polictes
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset as current
when it is:
+ £xpected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at [east twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

* [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

¢ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* It is due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-cusrent.
Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

b) Foreign currencies

i} Transactions and balances

Foreign Currency transactions are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items are retranslated at the exchange rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary ftems carried at fair
value are retranslated at the rate prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise

c) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each batance sheet date,




« In the principal market for the asset or liahility, or
The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Company.
« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

« Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

« investment in unquoted equity shares

» Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost)

d} Revenue recognhition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
discounts, applicable taxes and other similar allowances.
Other Operating revenues are recognised on accrual basis.

Sale of books and DVDs'

Revenue from sale of books and DVD's is recognised when stocks are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied :

* the entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the books and DVDs’;

* the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the books and DVDs' sold;

* the ameunt of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

* the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized upon shipment and transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer, provided that the ultimate collectabifity and final acceptance by the customer is reasonably assured. Revenue from the sale
of goods is recognized net of estimated returns for which the Company has recognized a provision based on previous experience and
other relevant factors.

The company adopts variant return policies agafnst few customers enabling them to return substantial quantity of unsold stock at the
end of the credit period. Also such policy applies in case of large volumes of print runs for top titles. While estimating provisional
future returns, the company considered actual past trends of all such returns and applied the same ratio for future year. Any deviation
of such expected returns need to be verified with actual numbers at each Balance Sheet date to revise expected future returns
percentage.

Interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the

amount of income can be measured reliably.

for all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the applicable effective interest rate (EIR). FIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit [osses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of
profit and loss.

Royalty Income

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accruat basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably). Rovalties
determined on a time basis are recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the agreement. Royalty arrangements that are
based on production, sales and other measures are recognised by reference to the underlying agreement.

selected titles are translated in various languages by other publishers, by way of granting Publishing rights to them. Royalty income
from such other publishers are disclosed as Royalty Income under revenue from operations.

e) Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.




Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date. Tax on income for the current period is determined an the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

Current income tax relating to items recegnised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit and lass.
Management periodicaliy evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temparary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

= When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liahility
irn a transaction that is not a bustness combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced ta the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to he recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
Hability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities.

VAT

* When the vat incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the vat is
recognised as part of the cost of acguisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

f) Property, plant and equipment

All ltems of property, plant and equipment, including freehold land, are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition,
property, plant and equipment other than freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Freehold fand has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. The carrying values of property, plant
and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. The accounting policy for barrowing costs Is set out in note
{h) below. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost
for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision
are met.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided in accordance with useful life as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act,2013.

Drepreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the written down value as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013, Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Assets Useful life in years
Plant & Equipment 15
Furniture and Electric Installation 10
Office Equipment 5
Computers /Computer server 3/6
Vehicles 8
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An item of property, plant and eguipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset} is inciuded in Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.

The residual values, useful fives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g} Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are initially recorded at cost.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the usefuf economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The amaortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecegnised upen disposal or when no future economic henefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, piant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Assets Useful life in years
Computer software 5

h} Barrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, are added 1o the cost of those assets, untill such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs cansist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

i) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the incepticn
of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A fease Is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognised as
operating leases. Lease rents under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis ,except
where escalation in rent is in line with expected general inflation.

Lease arrangements where lesee assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.Finance
leases are capitzlized at the lower of the fair value of the [eased assets at inception and the present value of minimum lease
payments.Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to periods during the lease term at a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Jj} Inventories

Inventories are vaiued at the fower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a First-n-first-out basis.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted and it includes all taxes, but excludes taxes
that are subsequently recoverable from tax authorities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k} Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of

1) Provisions
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Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits will be reqguired to settle the ohligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liakility. When discounting is used, the increase in the provisicn
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

When the Company expects scme or ali of a provision te be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance coniract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and lass net of any reimbursement.

m} Cantingencies

A contingent liability is:

= a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

» a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
» it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic banefits will be required to settie the obligation; or
» The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A cantingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
noen-occurrence of ohe or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

n) Employee henefits

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Pensions and other post-employment benefits are classified as either
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under defined contribution plan, the Company’s only cbligation is to pay a fixed
amount. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The present value
of the defined benefit obligations is calculated by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.The Company has
the following employee benefit plans:

{i) Contribution to Pravident fund ,family pension fund,ESIC Iabour welfare fund and superannuation fund:

(a) Company’s contributions during the year towards Government administered Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund, ESIC and
Labour Welfare Fund are charged {o the Profit and Loss statement as incurred.

{b} Company's contributions during the year towards Superannuation to the Superannuation Trust administered by a Life Insurance
Company are recognized in the Profit and Loss statement as incurred.

ii} Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net cbligation in
respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of fuiure benefit that employee has earned in exchange of
their service in the current and prior periods and discounted back to the current valuation date to arrive at the present value of the
defined benefit obligaticn. The defined benefit obligation is deducted from the fair value of plan assets, to arrive at the net asset /
(liability), which need to be provided for in the books of accounts of the Company.

As required by the Ind AS 19, the discount rate used to arrive at the present value of the defined henefit obligations is based on the
Indian goverament security yields prevailing as at the halance sheet date that have maturity date equivalent to the tenure of the
abligation.

The calculaticn is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a net asset
position, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in form of reductions in future
contributions.

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit plans comprises of actuarial gains and losses on benefit obligations, the return on plan
assets in excess of what has been estimated and the effect of asset ceiling, if any, in case of over funded plans. The Company
recognizes these items of re-measurements immediately in other comprehensive income and all the other expenses related to defined
benefit plans as employee benefit expenses in their profit and loss account. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
incame is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a pian is curtailed or settlement occurs, the portion of the changed henefit

{iii ) Other retirement benefit

Provision for other retirement / post retirement benefits in the forms of pensions, medical benefits and long term compensated
absences (leave encashment) is made on the basis of actuarial valuation.

o} Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eguity instrument of

another entity.




i} Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value {purchase value plus iransaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset}. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement :

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI}

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}
« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

{a) The asset is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

{b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPP{} on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inerest rate (EIR} method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOL|, is classified as at FYTPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as
at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI ar FVTPL. The Company
makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recegnition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then alf fair value changes an the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCl, There is no recycling of the amounts from OC! to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&lL.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractua$ rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows frem an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one ar more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’} and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
refiably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficufty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the prebability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or econemic canditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial liabilities
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Initiaf recogniticn and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recogniticn, as financial liabifities at fair value through profit or loss.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of Joans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial lfabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrewings including bank overdrafts, financial

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabitities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recoghition, and only if the criteria in tnd-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FYTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such tiability are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss,

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder

for a loss 1t incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less curnulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the fiability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantizlly modified, such an exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the criginal liahitity and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

p) Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-termn deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LWHTED
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 3
Property, plant and equipment

~particidars Leasehold... me'wrze & : Pl?m & Compiter : .Offige 2 Cyehicle Total

R improvements Fixures - Equipment R equipment :

Cost:
As at 1st April 2015 2,642,913 4,062,953 394,661 6,748,108 1,231,196 285,908 15,365,769
Additions 124,500 120,360 244,860
Disposals / Transfers (236,694) {94,450} - (73,965} - {405,109)
As at 31st March 2016 2,642,943 3,826,259 300,211 6,872,608 1,277,591 285,908 15,205,520
Additions 11,180 244,540 - 255,730
Disposals / Transfers 2,654,133} (3,826,259} {300,211) (6,601,688)] (1,522,131} (285,908}{ (15,150,330)
As at 31st March 2017 - - - 270,920 - - 270,920
Accumulated Depreciation:
As at 1st April 2015 1,350,292 2,892,557 271,789 6,259,641 1,065,887 285,907 12,126,073
Depreciation charge for the year 309,515 222,809 15,742 226,108 59,588 834,262
Adjustment 155,151 291,065 19,078 56,896 86,146 - 608,336
Disposals / Transfers - {215,145) {72,805) - (66,324) - (354,274)
As at 31st March 2016 1,814,958 3,191,386 233,804 6,542,645 1,145,697 285,907 | 13,214,397
Depreciation charge for the year 191,862 129,192 1,559 97,749 71,308 - 491,670
Disposals / Transfers (2,006,820} {3,320,578) (235,363) (6,383,671} {1,217,005) (285,907} {13,445,345)
As at 31st March 2017 - - - 256,722 - - 256,722
Net book value
At 31st March 2015 1,292,651 1,170,396 122,872 188,467 165,309 1 3,235,656
At 31st March 2016 827,985 634,873 66,407 329,963 131,894 1 1,951,123
At 31st March 2017 - - - 14,198 - - 14,198

Intangible assets

Cost:

As at 1st April 2015 3,771,701
Additions -
Disposals / Transfers -
As at 31st March 2016 3,771,701
Additions -
Disposals / Transfers -
As af 31st March 2016 3,771,701
Additions

Dispesals / Transfers {3,165,051)
As at 31st March 2017 606,650
Accumulated amortisation:

As at 315t March 2015 3,310,601
Amortisation charge for the year 247,985
Adjustment (496,742)
Disposals / Transfers

As at 31st March 2016 3,061,844
Armnoriisation charge for the year 150,139

Adjustment
Disposals / Transfers

{2,693,435)

As at 31st March 2017 518,548
Net book value

At 31st March 2015 461,100
At 31st March 2016 709,857
At 31st March 2017

88,102




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
[Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Notes forming part of financial statements
Note 4

FINANCIAL ASSET - investment

(o)

S Par_t[cﬁlars i * ps At 31st March 201?-: = As At _3:.lst Ma:rch 2016 e -As At 1st f\pral 2015
No of Shares | Amount No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount
A, Investments in equity instruments
Unquoted investments
Investments in subsidiaries - At Cost
Investment in Equity shares of Trent Brands Limited 3,249,58C | 280,162,540 - - -
investment in Equity Shares of Westland Publication Limited - - 489,954 499,994 -
3,249,580 | 280,162,540 499,994 499,934

Total Investments in Equity shares [A] 3,249,580 | 280,162,540 495,994 499,934 -
Total 280,162,540 499,934 -
Note 5

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS -~ NON-CLURRENT

AL 3151:

March 2016 -

Financial assets at Amortised Cost
Unsecured and Considered good

Other non-current assets,

Security Deposits 1,420,240 2,248,095 2,309,480
Total: e 2,248,095 772,309,480
Note 6

particulars

uUnsecured and Considered good

Advance Income Tax {including Fringe Benefits Tax) Net of
Provisicn for Tax { PY Rs, 15,09%,128)

567,813

1,209,911

Total i

- 567,813

1,209,911




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited }
Notes forming part of financial staterents

Nate 7
INVENTORIES

Sl - As At 31st March | - e ‘| . As At 1st April

Particular U 1st March 2016 -

) 'S 2017 As At_3 st Mare | 3045
At lower of cost or Net Realisable Value
Raw Materials - Goods-in-transit - 6,946
Stock-in-trade - 20,978,691 20,824,347
Total Inventories at lower of cost or net realisable value z 20,078,691 | :."20,831,293

Notes:

With resepect to continuing aperation other operation expensas include Rs.1,434,6096 in respect of write down of inventories to net realisable value,

Note 8
FINANCIAL ASSET - Current investments:

ST -As At 31st March 00 - As At 1st April -
coor Particulars e DU e A i SRR E
e 2017 7550 e As Ar 315t March 2016 FROE5
Investments - Mutual Funds (at fair value through profit and loss) 46,395,538 60,574,466 -
Total & 500w SR A6,398,538 00 60,574,466 “
Note 9
Trade Receivables
. IR R S ';:A-?:.Af 150-ApEH =
: i - particutar sAL3tstMarch 20061~ oongn ton
Trade Receivables - at amortised cost
Unsecured
Trade receivables - 95,752,611 68,856,267
Receivable from Related party (Refer Mote 25) - 262,745 46,100
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (3,941,820) (5,861,784)
- 92,073,536 64,040,583
Total “ LU T92,073,536 T 64,040,583




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
[Formerly known as Westland Limited }
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
SN, As At 31st March | “As At 31st March {00 T
ST Particulars | Capagii DL g6 o _:ASA.!:lﬁ.t..Ap.ri_l..zpi.ﬁ
Balances with Banksin :
- Current Accounts 1,465,465 1,424,795 -
- Deposit Accounts (original maturity mere than 12 ) 200,000 200,000
months)
Cash in hand - 23,145 48,302
Total =tk L 465,468 et 51,647,040 [0 248,302

Details of Specified Bank Notes held and transacted during th

e period 8th Novernh

er 2016 to 30th December 2016, are as siat

Other
SBNs denomination Total
notes
Cash in Hand as on 8th November 2016 45,000 4,918 49,918
{+} Parmitted Receipts - 256,743 256,743
{-) Prmitted Payments - 96,349 96,349
(-} Amount deposited in Banks 45,000 104,643 149,643
Cash in Hand as on 315t December 2016 - 60,669 60,669
Note 11
Other Financial Assets
-As At31stMarch | “AsAt3istMarch |0
LRy | 0 03016 T Das A dst April 2015
Unsecured Considered good
Loans and Advarces to Staff - 220,771 22,329
Interest Accrued on depasits - 133,306 109,800
Total = 354,077 132,129

ed below:




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

{Formerly known as Westland Limited }
Notes foerming part of financial statements

Note 12
Other Current assets

D e As At 31st March |- As At 31st March -| -As At 1st April >
“Particulars - R . Pl T ST
L IR 2017 2016 2015
Unsecured Considered good
VAT receivable - 10,644 10,632
Pre-paid Expenses - 2,907,560 1,331,585
Other recoverable 2,700,865 - -
Advance to Authors for Royalty:
Considered Good - 87,623,671 79,263,993
Considered Boubtful - 7,619,708 5,228,955
Less : Provision for Doubtful advances - {7,619,708) {5,228,995)
- 87,623,671 79,263,993
Expected Return frorm Customer - 15,314,405 8,464,708
Tt — Tt 2,700,865°] o 108;856,280° -89,070,918




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited }
Motes forming part of financial statemeants

Note 13
EQUITY

- Particulars

As At 31st March 2017

As At 31st March 2016

As At 15t Aprif 2015

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
9,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1 each 9,50,00,000 50,00,000 50,00,000
[As at 31.03.3016 :50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1 each)
(As at 01.04.2015: 5C,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1 each}
9,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1 each 9,50,00,000 18,50,00,000 18,50,00,000
{As at 31.03.2016:18,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1 each)
{As at 01.04.2015:18,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1 each)
19,00,00,000 14,00,00,000 19,00,00,000
Ordinary Shares
Issued:
2,835,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/~ each 28,35,010 28,35,01C 28,35,000
Subscribed and paid-up:
2,835,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 28,35,010 28,35,010 28,35,000
Total Equity o nom s o e 111:28,35,010 -28,35,010 | 20 28,35,000

March 2016 | “As A

OTHER EQUITY
RETAINED EARNINGS
General reserve 42,65,000 42,65,000 42,65,000
Surplus in Stetement of Profit and Loss {1,42,6%,308) (26,57,40,893) {20,24,13,754)
(1,00,04,908) {26,14,75,893) (19,81,48,754)
RESERVES
Equity companent of Compund Financizal instrument 6,21,28,734 6,21,28,734 7,62,84,949
Transition Reserves (61,76,958) (61,76,958) {61,76,958)
5,59,51,776 5,59,51,776 7,01,07,991
Other Reserves
Securities premium account 26,57,67,278 26,57,67,278 -
Capital reserve 86,98,6C0 86,98,600 86,98,600
27,44,65,878 27,44,65,878 B6,98,600
Total - Other Bquity 50000 ii i s ::32,08,12,746:| - - 6,89,41,761 1 :7::(11,93,42,163}




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Westland Limited }
Notes forming part of financial statements
Note 14

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - Non-Current Borrowings

{in Rupees)

LR As At 31st Mar_’ch_ As At 31st Ma;&h_ﬁ-

3 Particulars L2017 2016
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
UnSecured
Liability component of Optionally Convertible Preference Shares - - 24,516,281
Liability component of Redeemable Preference Shares - - 110,597,064
{Refer Note 3{iii}
Tb{a]' ——ee " 135’113’345
Note 15

LONG TERM PROVISIONS

(in Rupees}

5 Pa_rtic-(.i!ars‘.z S

Pravision for employee benefits.- Gratuity

Total "

1,301,055

FRHET 1,301,055

2016 -

s At dst'April-
20150 0

Pravision for Gratuity

Amount { Rs.}

Amount ( Rs.)

Current 1,194 - -
Non Current 45,505 1,301,055 967,037
Total 46,699 1,301,055 967,037




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Wastiand Limited )
Notes forming part of financial statements
Note 16

Current Borrowings

..... _— t-. 1 Fpareh | e e
At31stMarch . As At 15t April 2015

RSN - Particulars ¢
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Secured

Cash credit facility - 39,893,062 43,534,253

Unsecured
Loan from a related party - Fellow subsidiary - 55,000,000 13,140,055

ol T wagsoer | 56674308

Notes:
1. Cash Credit is repayable on demand and interest is charged as per rate communicated by HDFC Bank, The facility is
Secured by an exclusive first charge on Fixed assets and Current Assets of the Company

2. Loan from fellow subsidiary is for a period of 3 years with Interest rate of 10% p.a. payable on quarterly basis.

Note 17
Trade Payables

ST L partichlars
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

‘A5 At 1st April 2015

Trade payables 6,416,778 88,997,576 85,507,305

W R Te,A18, T8 088,097,576 | L LIRS, 507,305

Total -

Note 18
Other Current Liahilities
' twt ' Particulars

“As At3ist March | As At 31st March -
20070 [0 p01s |

Advances from Customers - - 1,215,000
Statutory dues 1,570,544 2,610,414 1,802,771
Provision for expected right to return - 25,443,064 14,641,666
Total = i e 670,544 o 28,053,478 | 117,659,437




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited }

Notes forming part of financial statements
Note 19

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS . _
ke el ASAt31st Viarch [ ASACSISEMSIA T 0 a1 paren 2015
{a) Provision for employee benefits. Leave Incashment 107,799 2,479,930 2,129,143
(b Provision for employee benefits.~ Gratuity 1,194 - -
Total :.-108,993 2,479,930 2,129,143
Note 20
Curr.mf( I_Iabilities ta:f .(nfat.}. - — e o or—— —
o e
Current tax liabilities tax {net} 857,372 - -
Total - Gl gs T AT




FEHORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 21

REVENUE FROM GPERATIONS

T Year ended 31st | Yearended 3ist .

Canin - particulars < March 2017 -~ March 2016
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products (Net of Returns) - Books 30,500 162,991
Total & T T T e e Cab 130,500 162,981
Note 22
OTHER INCOME

~Particulars. e
S 2017

Interest income

- Interest income on fixed deposits 163,014 -
Other non-operating income {net of expenses directly
attributable to such incomel.

- Miscellaneous income 1,866,927 45,584
Other gains and losses

- Profit on sales of Investment Current investment 6,411,237

- Gain on fair valuation of mutual fund investment 574,466
Total: oo o 8,441,178 620,050
Note 23
Employee Benefits Expense

" “Miarch 2017,

- March 2016

Salaries, wages and allowances 1,636,926 1,611,546
Contribution to provideni and other funds 145,374 138,757
Staff welfare expenses 6,721 6,385
Total 01,789,021 0,756,688




'

FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 24
OTHER EXPENSES
Cin e | Yearended 315t | vear ended 31t -
TR March 201, . March 2016 - -
Rent 293,298 2,480,000
Repairs and maintenance to machinery 24,018 22,900
Insurance 18,552 11,450
Rates and taxes 110,200 520,297
Travelling and conveyance 41,130 39,074
Bank charges 8,825 2,290
Professional and legal charges 6,399,475 248,291
Auditor's remuneration { Refer Note 1 below) 1,021,831 601,125
Bad debts written off 3,181,614 4,172,195
Less: Transferred from provision {4,172,195)
Loss on fair valuation of mutual fund investment 78,877 -
1,414,817 6
| 3,925,433

Payments to the auditors comprise:

Audit fees 788,550 425,000
Tax audit 100,000 100,000
Taxes and levies 133,281 76,125

TOTAL 1,021,831 601,125




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

{Formerly known as Westland Limited )

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3Est March, 2017
Note 25 - Refated party transactions

Holding Company
TRENT Limited
(100% of capital held as on 31 March 2017 and 99.99% as on 31" March 2016)
Fellow Subsidiary
Landmark F-Tail Limited
(100% Share capital held by Trent Lirited upto 10th June 2015,)
Fiora Services Limited
(8%.88% share capital held by Trent Brands Limited (Subsidiary of Trent Limited) as on 31" March, 2017}
Trent Brand Limited
{52.01% Share capital held by Trent Ltd. as on 31st March 2017)
{47.99% Share capital held by Westland as on 31st March 2017}
{100% Share capital held by Trent Limited as on 31st March 2016.)
Subsidiary
Westland Publications Limited
'(100% Subsidiary of Westland Lirnited, incorporated on 30th March 2016 ceased to he subsidiary with

effect from 22nd November 2016 }

Note 25.1
{All amounts in Rs. unless otherwise stated)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Net Sales to and other recoveries from related parties

a. Holding Company Trent Limited 1,010,670 2,230,534
b. Fellow Subsidiary - Landmark £-Taif Limited - 12,221
c. Subsidiary Westland Publications Limited 449 -
d) KMP { Gautam Padmanabhan) - 5,670

Services Received
a.) Fiora Services Ltd { Feliow Subsidiary) 1,074,100 -

Investment in Equity Shares
a. Subsidiary - Westland Publications Limited & 499,954
b} Fellow Subsidiary - Trend Brands Limited 280,162,540 -

Loans Borrowed

a. Fellow Subsidiary - Fiora Services Limited

Opening Balance 55,000,000 1 13,140,055
Loar: During the year 50,000,000 { 42,080,000
Interest Repayment 6,243,655 140,055
Repayment of Loan 105,000,000 -

Closing Balance - 55,000,000

Interest Expense
a. Fellow Subsidiary - Fiora Services Limited

interast Accrued during the year 6,243,695 2,086,934
Interest Repayment 6,243,695 1,878,237
Loan te Westland Publications Ltd. (Subsidiary Company till 22.11.2016) 2,000,000 -
Interest Income on Westland Publications Ltd. Loan 26,301 -

Refmbursement of Expenses
a. Holding company

- Trent Limited 68,726,251 652,281
b. Fellow subsidiary
- Fiora Services Limited 7,308 -




Recovery of Expenses

Westland Pubilciation Limited { subsidary Company) 9,21,263 -
Trent Limited ( Holding Company } 17,100 -
Fiora Service Limited 19,755

Outstanding balance receivable/ {Payable) as on 31st March 2017

Trent Limited { Receivabie } - 2,62,745
Trent Limited { Payable } (1,79,091) {12,371}
Fiora Services Limited { Receivable ) 12,500 -

Issues / Repayment of Preference shares {(Net)
a. Holding company
- Trent Limited - 16

Relative of KPM

Chandra Padmanabhan
Sale of Books 1,782 -
Royalty Paid 29,462 -
Qutstanding balance receivable/ (Payable) as on 31/03/2017 -
Sitting Fees of Directors

- A D Cooper - 1,50,000
-1 CBham 4,10,000 5,50,000
- KV Merchant 3,60,000 50,000

Key Managerial Person

Mr. Gautam Padmanabhan was appointed as “Manager” w.e.f 1st January 2012 He resigned w.e.f. 24th Jan 17 and his
Remuneration for the Financial year 2016 -17 is Rs. 5,086,654 (Previous Year Rs. 5,092,126}, This does not include
Gratuity and Leave encashment benefits since the same is computed actuarially for all employees and the amount
attributable to the managerial person cannot be ascertained seperately.

Equity share capital held by Mr. Gautham Padmanabhan as at 31st March 2017 — Rs. Nil {Previous year Rs. Nii}




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Westland Limited )

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Note 26
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit /loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting or
interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity

shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Earnings used in the calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS:
Profit /(loss} from centinuing opearaton

Profit /(loss) from discontinued opearaton

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings:

Interest on convertible preference shares
Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic and diluted EPS

Earnings per share (For Continuing operation)
- Basic
- Diluted
Earnings per share (For Discontinued operation)
- Basic
- Diluted
Earnings per share (For Continuing and discontinued operation}
- Basic
- Diluted

31st March 2017

31st March 2016

INR in Rs INR in Rs
(5,942,300) (4,950,800}
257,712,001 {57,673,614)
251,765,701 {62,624,414)
251,769,701 (62,624,414)
11,408,138 7,560,591
{0.52) (0.65)}
{0.52) (0.65)
22.59 {7.63)
22.59 (7.63)
22.07 (8.28)
22.07 (8.28)




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

[Formerly known as Westland Limited )

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017
Note 27

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled te specific benefit.
The leve! of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.

As the plan assets include significant investments in approved Gratuity Fund administered by Life Insurance corporation of India. The company subscribes to the
fund from time to time based on actuarial valuation showing required investments,

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Net benefit expense 31st March 2016 (recognised in profit er loss) INR INR
Current service cost 546,308 505,373
Interast cost on benefit obligation 64,485 37,363
Net benefit expense 610,793 542,736

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

Defined benefit obligation at 31st March 2016 3,856,442 3,238,243
tnterest cost 307,220 256,094
Current service cost 546,308 505,373
Benefits paid (652,500} {812,827)
Actuarial Gains/ Losses 201,459 669,559
Lathiites Assured [ [Settle ) {4,212,230} -

Defined benefit obligation at 31st March 2017 46,699 3,856,442

Changes in the falr value of the plan assets are, as follows :

Fair value of plan assets at 31st March 2016 2,555,387 2,271,206
Employer contributions 652,500 911,443
Interest on plan assets 242,735 218,731
Remesurements due to difference between expected return and actual return on pian assets (97,257) (33,168)
Benefits paid (652,500) (812,827)
Assests acquiured / {Settied)* {2,700,865} -

Fair value of plan assets at 31st March 2017 - 2,555,387

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan is as follows:

Service cost 546,308 505373
Net interest expense 64,485 37363
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit and loss 610,793 542,736

Opening Amount recognised in OCI Qutside Profit & Loss Accounts 702,725 c
Actuarial changes in plan Habilities 3,405 715580
Experience adjustments 198,054 (46,021)
Actuarial changes in plan assets 97,257 33166
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 1,001,441 702,725

Amount included in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 46,599 3,856,442
Fair value of plan assets -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 46,699 3,856,442

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as foliows:




31st March 2017 31st March 2016
INR INR

2,555,387

Insurer Managed Funds where composition of planned assets not available

- 2,555,387

The principal assumpttons used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

31st March 2017 31st March 2016

% %
Biscount rate:
Gratuity plan 7.65% 8.05%
Future salary increases:
7.00% 7.00%

Gratuity plan

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31st March 2017 is as shown below:

india gratuity plan:
Future salary

increases
31st March 2017  31st March 2017

Discount rate

Assumptions
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO {9.01%)
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 10.15% (9.10%)

10.17%

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapoiates the impact on defined benefit obligaticn as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contrikuticns to the defined benefit plan in future years:

31st March 2017 31st March 2016

INR INR

Within the next 12 months (next arnual reporting 1,124 80,059
Between 2 and 5 years 5,400 687,143
Between 5 and 10 years 6,590 2,582,139
242,685 7,599,209

Beyond 10 years
Total expected payments

The Weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 19.11 years.




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED

(Formerly known as Westland Limited }

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017
Note 28

Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Cperating Leases

The Company is obligated under some cancellable operating Jeases for office space which are renewable on a periodical basis. Lease
payments under canceltable operating leases for the year ended 31st March 2017 aggregated to Rs. 21,55,039 {Previous year -

Rs.2,485,397).
b. Contingent liabilities

i. Bank guarantees outstanding- Rs. NIt (previous year — Rs. 200,000)
ii. Disputed Tax demands

Amounts in Rupees

Forum 31% March 2017 | 31% March 2016
Commissioner (Appeals) Income Tax for the Assessment year 2005-06 1,486,084 1,486,084
Commecial Tax Officer - Delhi VAT & CST for financial year 2010-2011 $2,000 82,060




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Farmerly known as Westtand Limited )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Note 29

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is expesed to market risk, credit risk , liquidity risk etc. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's
senior management is overseen by the audit committee with respect to risks and facilitates appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company.
Financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directars reviews and agrees
palicies for managing key risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as eguity price risk and commodity risk, Financis) instrurments affected by market risk include
loans and borrowings, deposits, investments and derivative financial instruments.

The compary manages market risk through a treasury department at Group level,which evaluate and exercises control over the entire process of market risk
management.The treasury department recommends risk management obejectives and policies ,which are approved by senior management and the Audit/investment
committee. The activities of this department include management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foriegn currecy exposure, borrowing
strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limit and policies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financiai instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. interest rate
change does not affects significantly short term borrowing and current investment therefore the Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt and Mon current investment. The company does not foresee material impact on its existing Long term borrowings
from fellow subsidiary and Non-current Investment in another Subsidiary in view of ongoing substantial changes in Business plans.

Foreign currency risk

The company is exposed to foreign currency risk through its purchases of merchandise /receipt of services from overseas parties in various foreign currencies.

The company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currecny transactions and the company follows established risk managment policies,including the
use of derivatives like foreing exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to fareign currency risk,

The Company does not have any unhedged Forelgn Currency Liability/ assets including Financial instruments impacting the Financial position. Collection from
overseas online site accrues as and when arises and is not material in terms of overalf business of the company . Payment to overseas authors or: account of Rovaity is
based on contract and dependent on future sales.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obfigations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks , financial institutions and ather parties, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The company is Aot exposed te significant concentrations of credit risk as palicies are in place to cover retaii sales where Collections are primarily made in cash or
through credit card payments.The company adopts prudent criteria in its investment poficy, the main objectives of which are to reduce the credit risk associated with
investment products and the counterparty risk associated with financial institutions.The Company considers the soivency, liquidity, asset guality and management
prudence of the counter parties, as well as the performance potential of the counter parties in stressed conditions .In refation to credit risk arising from commercial
transactions, impairment losses are recognized for trade receivables when objective evidence exists that the Company will be unable to recover all the outstanding
amounts i1 accordance with the original centractual conditions of the receivables.

iguidity risk

The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity,funding as well settlement management.ln addition,the related policies and processes are overseen
by senior management. Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling forecast on the basis of expacted cash flows.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial lizbilities and assets based on centractual vndiscounted payments.

Financial Liakilites maturity profile

Less than 3
Year Ended 31st March 2017 On Demand momnths 3 to 12 months 1ta 5 years > 5 years Total
Borrowings {ather than Convertible
preference shares):
Trade and other Payables 6,330,376 2,700 83,702 6,416,778
Total - 6,330,376 2,700 83,702 - 6,416,778




Less than 3

Year Ended 31st March 2016 ©On Demand months 3 to 12 manths 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Borrowings (other than Convertible
preference shares):
Short term Borrowings - - 55,000,000 - 55,000,000
Cash Credit Facifity with HDFC 39,893,062 - - - - 39,893,062
Trade and other Payables 87,440,179 1,557,397 88,997,576
Total 39,893,062 87,440,179 56,557,397 - - 183,890,638
As at 1st April 2015 ©n Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
months
Borrowings {other than Convertible
preference shares):
Short term Borrowings - - 13,140,055 - 13,140,055
Cash Credit Facility with HDFC 43,534,253 - - - - 413,534,253
Trade and other Payabies 85,507,305 85,507,305
Total 43,534,253 - 98,647,360 - - 142,181,613
Financial assets maturity profile
Lessthan3
Year Ended 31st March 2017 On Bemand months 3 0 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
financial assets other than non current
investment
Current Investment 46,395,538 - - - 46,395,538
Cash and Cash equivalent 1,465,465 1,465,465
Qther non current financial assets 1,420,240 1,420,240
Total 47,861,003 - - 1,420,240 - 49,281,243
Year Ended 31st March 2016 On Demand Le:::::l: 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years » 5 years Total
Financial assets other than non current
investment
Current Investment 60,574,466 - - - 50,574,466
Trade receivable - - 92,073,536 - - 92,073,536
Cash and Cash equivalent 1,647,940 1,647,940
Other current financial assets 354,077 354,077
Other non current financial assets 2,248,095 2,248,085
Total 62,222,405 - 92,427,613 2,248,095 - 156,898,113
As at 1st April 2015 On Demand Le:::::hls 3 to 12 months 1to5years > Syears Tatal
Financial assets other than non current
investment
Trade receivabie - - 64,040,583 - - 54,040,583
Cash and Cash equivalent 248,302 248,302
Cther current financial assets 132,129 132,129
Other non current financial assets 2,309,480 2,309,48G
Total 248,302 - 64,172,712 2,309,480 - 66,730,494




(i}

FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited }
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

30. Categorization of financial instruments:

The classification of financial assets and liabilities by accounting categorisation is as folows:

Particulars Vear ended Loar}s and Fair vafue through | Other amortised Total carrying
receivables P&L cost amount
Other non current finangial assets 31.03.2017 1,420,240 - - 1,420,240
31.03.2016 2,248,095 2,248,095
31.03.2015 2,309,480 2,309,480
Current investments 31.03.2017 46,395,538 - 46,395,538
31,03.2016 60,574,466 60,574,466
31.03,2015
Trade receivables 31.03.2017 - - - -
31.03.2016 92,073,536 52,073,536
31.03.2015 64,040,583 64,040,583
Cash and bank balances 31.03.2017 1,465,465 - - 1,465,465
31.03.2016 1,647,940 1,647,940
31.03.2015 248,302 248,302
Other current financial assets 31.03.2017 - - - -
31.03.2016 354,077 354,077
31.03.2015 132,129 132,129
31.03.2017 2,885,705 46,395,538 - 49,281,243
Total 31.03.2016 96,323,648 60,574,466 - 156,898,114
31.03.2015 66,730,494 - - 66,730,494
Current borrowings 31.03.2017 - -
31.03.2016 94,893,062 94,893,062
31.03.2015 56,674,308 56,674,308
Trade payables 31.03.2017 6,416,778 6,416,778
31.03.2016 88,997,576 88,997,576
31.03.2015 85,507,305 85,507,305
31.03.2017 - - 6,416,778 6,416,778
Total 31,03.2016 - - 183,890,638 183,890,638
31.03.2015 - - 142,181,613 142,181,613

Mote No. 31 - Fair Value Measurement

Eair velue of the Company's financial assets and financial abilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

. . R Valuation
Fi ial assets/ fi ial liabilities Fair value as at Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and
francia ‘nancia 31st March 2017 |31st March 2016 |hierarchy echniq "
key input(s)
Investment in Mutual fund 46,395,538 60,574,466 |FVTPL Quoted NAV

Note 32
Prefarence shares:

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares:
During the year 2014-15, the Company issued 49,316,400 10% Optionaily Convertible Preference shares of Re.1 each to Trent Limited, the holding

company.
The helders of the Optionally Convertible Preference Shares were given an option te convert their OCPS into equity shares at any point of time. if
any of the helders do not exercise the option, the OCPS then such outstanding OCPS shall get redeemed on the expiry of 5 years from the date of
attotment of such OCPS. )

The GCPS contain two components: lisbility and equity elements. The equity element s presented in "Other equity' under the head ‘Equity
compenent of compound financial instruments'. The effective interedt rate of the equity efement is 16% per annum.




&

The Company redeemed the OCPS on 11th February 2016.

Balance as at 01 April 2015:
Equity component of OCPS {on inception) 27,303,638

Amousnt of Imputed interest debited to retained earnings as at

2 1
the transition date (2,503,519}

Liability component of OCPS N 24,516,281
_49316,400 |

interest cost on the insirument debited:-t'o'the Income

R . 3,502,448
Statement in previous year

(i) Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company issued 130,000,000 10% Redeemable Preference Shares (RPS) of Re.1 each in an earlier year, The Redeemable Preferance Shares
shall be redeemed on or before the expiry of three years from the date of allotment of such preference shares at the discretion of the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The Redeemable Preference Shares were fair valued at a rate of return of 16% per annum and the reducticn arising on fair valuation has been
presented in 'Other equity’ under the head 'Equity component of compound financial instruments'.

Balance as at 01 Aprif 2015:

Equity component of RPS (on inception) 48,981,311
Amount of imputed interest debited to retained earnings as at
. (29,578,375)
the transition date
Liability component of OCPS 110,597,064
- 130,000,00C
Interest cost on the instrument debited to the inceme
17,571,264

Statement in the previous year




FIGRA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Note 33

Deferred Tax :

Unrecagnised deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses

Particulars 31st March 2017 [31st March 2016

Business Losses avaifable for off-setting against future taxable Income 65,234,425 65,234,425

Unabsorbed Depreciation available for off-setting against future taxable Income - 6,693,627

Difference between boak halance and tax balance of fixed assets - 1,329,550
Other Deductible Temporary Differences

- Employee Bonus 540,692 527,563

- Compensated Absences 945,891 842,092

- Gratuity Liability 496,968 450,269

Deferred Tax Assets 67,221,976 75,077,526

Net Unrecognised Deferred Tax Asset 67,221,976 75,077,526

Year wise Break-up of eligible utilisation of Brought Forward Business Loss for
Set Off

31st March 2017

31st March 2016

Upto 1 year 8,642,891
More than 1 year and upto 5 years 30,573,144 21,930,253
More than 5 years 34,661,281 41,354,808
Total 65,234,425 71,928,052




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Note 34

Discontinued operation

.

]
“%3
)

(1.Jon 27th Oct 2016 ,the company entered in to sale agreement to dispose of its publishing business under slump sale business arrangement,

The proceed of sale substantially exceeds the carrying amount of the related net assets.The disposal /sale was completed on 24th lan 2017 On

which date control of the pubiishing business passed to acquirer. Detail of the assets and liabilities disposad off and the calculation of gain on

disposal are disclosed in note 5 beiow.

{2.)The result for discontinued operations included in the profit for the year are set out below. The comparitive profit or loss and cash flow from

discontinued operation have been presented as if these operation were discontinued in the prior year as well

. For the year ended on |For the year ended on
Particualrs

I March'17 March'ls |
Revenue  14,54,93,433 © 21,25,43,405
Expense -20,27,65,287) -27,02,17,019
toss berforé tax from discontinued operations -5,72,71,854 -5,76,73,614
Profit on disposal of business on slump sale 38,47,33,855

Profit /(loss) from discontinued operation after tax 32,74,62,001 -5,76,73,614
Tax Expenses -6,97,50,000 -

Profit/ (loss)from Discontinued operation 25,77,12,001 -5,76,73,614

{3) Detail of major class of assets and liabilites of discontinued operation were as follows:

Particulars ) Ason 24.01.17 |
7Asse'ts e+ i e . E—
Property,Plant and Equipment 22,19,667
Inventory 1,88,85,816
Trade Receivables 8,84,44,565
Cash and bani{éalance 2,00,62,000
Other current assets ~15,14,38,050
Liabilities

loan 15,49,03,192 |
Trade payable - 8,98,21,725
Other current Laibilities 2,30,69,036

{4) Detall of cash flow of discontinued operation is as follows:

" For the year ended on |For the year ended on
Particualrs
March'17 March'16

Cash flow from operating activities {including recovery on disposal of
discontinued operation 35,69,95,892 -5,49,60,137
Cash flow from investing activities 25,66,3563 ' -2,44,8{56
Cash flow from finahcing activities 79-,“1'1“;3,93,062 -12, 19155,3074
{5) Gain on disposal

Particulars Amount
Consideration received ) 39,80,00,000
Net assets disposed of 1,32,66,145
|Gain on Disposal 38,47,33,855

The gain on disposal/siump sale is included in the profit for the year from discontinued operation {See note 2 above)




FIORA BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Westland Limited )
Note 35 - First time adoption of Ind AS

The Cempany has prepared finandal statements which comply with Ind AS applicabie for the period ending as on 21st March 2016 for comparative purpose for the

period ending 31st March 2017, In preparing these financial statements, the Companies cpening balance sheet was prepared as at 1st April 2015, the Company's

date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the company in restating its IGAAP financial statements, including the balance

sheet g5 at 1st April 2015 and the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2015,

Exemption availed under IND AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards'

Investments in subsidiaries, associates & joint ventures: Company has availed the option to continue recording of Investments(in each of thesa cases} at cost a5
per Indian GAAP as on transition date amongst available options of fair valuation or cost as per Ind AS 27 ‘separate financial statement'

Business Combination; Company has availed the exemption available under ind AS 101 {or not restating the past business combinations at fair value.

Recenciliation of equity as at 1st April, 2015

As on 01/04/2015

Particulars Notes [Previous GAAP | Effect of Opening Ind AS
transition to ind |balance sheet
AS
A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, Flant and Equipment 3,239,696.00 - 3,239,696
(b} Cther Intangible assets 46%,100.00 - 461,100
(c) Long term Loans and Advances 3,519,391 (1,209,911) 2,309,480
{d) Other non-current assets 1,209,911 1,209,911
Total Non - Current Assets 7,220,187, (0} 7,220,187
2 Current assets
{a} Inventories 20,831,293 - 20,831,293
(k] Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivahles 64,04C,583 - 64,040,583
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents 248,302 - 248,302
{iii) Loans 80,617,908, {80,485,779) 132,129
() Other current assets 120,432 48,950,486 89,070,918
Total Cusrent Assets 165,858,518 8,464,707 174,323,225
Tatal Assets (1+2) 173,078,705 8,464,707 181,543,412
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
{a) Equity Share capital Note 2 182,151,400 (279,316,400} 2,835,000
{b) Convertible non-garticipating preference share capital
{c} Other Equity excluding non-controlling interasts Note 2 (157,368,260) 38,026,097 (119,342,163}
Total Equity 24,783,140 [141,250,303) (116,507,163}
LIABILITIES
2 {Non-current liabilities
(a} Financial iabilities
{i) Borrowings Note 2 - 135,113,345 135,113,345
{b) Provisions 2,129,143 {2,129,143) E
{c) Other non-current liakilities 967,037 967,037.00
3,056,180 132,984,202, 136,08G,382]
3 Curvent liahilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 56,674,308 - 56,674,308
(i} Trade payables 85,507,305 - 85,507,305
{b) Other current liabilities 3,017,771 14,641,666 17,659,437
{c) Provisions 2,129,143 2,129,143
{d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
145,199,385 16,770,809 161,970,193
Tatal Equity and Liabilities {1+2+3) 173,078,704 8,464,708 181,543,412




Reconciliation of equity as at 31st March, 2016

As on 31/3/2016
Particulars Notes Previous GAAP Effect of Ind AS
Transition to Ind
AS
ASSETS
Neon-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1,993,123 - 1,993,123
(b} Other Intangible assets 703,857 R 703,857
(c) Financial Assets
{i) Investments 495,994 - 499,994
(c) Longterm Loans and Advances 2,248,095 - 2,248,095
(k) Gther non-current assets 567,813 - 567,813
Yotal Non - Current Assets 5,016,882 - 6,016,882
Current assets
fa) Inventories 20,978,601, - 20,578,602
(b) Financiat Assets
(i} Investments Motel 50,000,000 574,466 60,574,466
(i) Trade recsivables 92,073,536 - 92,073,536
{3ii} Cash and cash equivalents 1,647,840 - 1,647,940
{iv} Loans 90,752,003 {90,397,5925) 354,078
(c) Other current assets 143,851 105,712,330 105,856,280
Total Currant Assets 265,596,119 15,888,871 281,484,950
Total Assets {1+2) 271,613,001 15,888,871 287,501,872
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11,408,138 {8,573,128) 2,835,010
(b} Convertible non-participating preference share capital
(c} Cther Equity excluding non-controliing interests 69,922,829 (981,068} 68,941,761
Total Equity 81,330,967 (9,554,196) 71,776,771
LEABILETIES
{Non-current liabilities
{b) Provisions 1,301,055 1,301,055
{c) Deferred tax ligbilities (Net}
{d} Other non-current liabilities 1,301,055 (1,303,055) -
1,301,055 - 1,301,055
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 54,893,067 - 94,893,062
{if) Trade payables 88,997,576 E 88,997,576
{b) Giher current liahilities 2,610,414 25,443,064, 28,053,478
{c) Provisions 2,475,930 2,479,930
186,501,052 27,922,994 234,424,046
Total Equity and Liabilities {1+243) 269,133,074 18,368,798 287,501,872




Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

For the year ended on March'Lb
Effect of
Particutars Notes Previous GAAP | transition to Ind tnd AS
AS
| Revenue from gperations 162,951 162,991
il Other Income Mote 1 45,584 574,466 620,050
. 1l Interest income .
W Total Revenue (i + 1+ 1) ) 208,574 574,466 783,001
v EXPENSES
{a) Employee benefit expense 1,756,688 1,756,688
(b} Finance costs Note 2 -
(c} Depreciation and amortisation expense 51,720 51,720
- {d) Other expenses 3,925,433 - 3,925,433
e fotalEwpensestyy 5,733,841 - 5733841
Vi Share of h'rlgfir':"',"(loss) of joint ventures and assaciates ' I o
{1} Share of profit / (loss) of joint ventures
(2) Share of profit / (loss) of associates
il Profit/(loss) befare exceptional items and tax {IV (5,525,266} 574,466 (4,950,800)
ovib {Exceptional items e e -
X {Profit/(loss) before tax (VIF- VIH) T T
X Tax Expense
{1} Current tax
(i} Current tax
{ii) Current tax relating to previous years
(2) Deferred tax
{i) Deferred tax
(if) Deferred tax relating to previous years
Totaltaxexpense . . . LN R -
*l_ |Profit/{loss) after tax from continuing operations {IX - X} (5,525,266} 574,466 | (4,950,800}
X Profit/{loss) after tax from discontinued operaticns
Xill Profitf{lass) on disposal of discontinued operations (32,950,921} (24,722,693) (57,673,614)
U Xiv [fk[gfit/(loss) after tax from discontinued operations {Xil + XII) L {38,476,188) (24,148,226} {62,624,414))
XV |Profit/{loss) for the period {XI + XIV) 138,476,188} {24,148,226) {62,624,414)
XVI Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be recycled to profit or loss
{b) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans Note 3 - (702,725) (702,725)
B {i) items that may be reclassified to profit or lass
{ii} income tax on items that may be reclassified to profit or loss )
XVII  {Total comprehensive incame for the period (XV + XVi) (38,476,188} {24,850,951) {63,327,139)
{iv) Adjustments to the statement of cash flows
Year ended 31/3/2016
PARTICULARS Refer | AsperlGAAP | AsperIND AS
note 5
below
Loss Before Tax {38,476,188) {63,327,135)

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows from finencing activities

Net increase [decrease} in cash and cash equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign
currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Total comprehensive income under [nd ASs

(59,910,939)
(60,685,727)
121,956,304
1,398,638
48,302

1,447,940

{59,910,937)
{60,685,729)
121,996,304
1,398,638
48,302

1,447,940

Major adjustment carried out while transition from IGAAP to IND AS

[1.) Accounting of Investment in accordance with Ind AS 109: The company has measured investments {other than investment in subsidairies) at fair value in

accordance with Ind AS 109, Accordingly vaiue of investment has been adjusted from Rs. 6,00,00,000 to Rs. 6,05,74,466 as orr March'16 .




{2.) Accounting for Preference Shares :- Under Ind AS, Redeemable and Optionally Convertible preference shares are seperated into equity & liability. Thus, as on
the transition date the share capital is reduced by Rs. 17,93,16,400 with a corresponding increase in borrowing of Rs. 30,30,31,451 as liability component. and the
residual amount is treated as the equity component of Rs 7,62,84,949 | Interest on liability component is recognised using effective interest method. Interest of
Rs.3,20,81,894 accrued on liability compoanant up to transition date has been adjusted against retained earnings. During the financial year interest on liability
component using effective interest method charged to profit and loss account is Rs 2,14,73,711 subsequently there is increase in liability component of optionally

convertible preference shares. This expense is non-cash in nature hence it wilf not impact cash flow of the company but has increased in foss for the year.

(3.} Employee Benefits:Under Ind AS, Rs 7,02,725 has been regrouped from employee benefit expenses to other comprehensive income on account of
remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses as on 31st March 2016

(4.) Provision for Expected sales Return :As per Ind AS18 the company has recognised provison for customer return of Rs.1,46,41,666 and racoverable from
customer of Rs. 84,64,708. in respect of earlier year saies against opening retained earnings.For the financial year ended on March'i6 company has reduced sales
and purchases by Rs.1,08,01,398 & 68,49,657 respectvely for expected sales returns.

(5)The impact in cashflows is majorly on account of non-cash adjustments and regrouping of assets and liabilities.

All other adjsutment are mainly refated to classHication of assets and liabilites in financial and non financiat nature.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Directors—

Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date :10th May,2017
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(2.) Accounting for Preference Shares :- Under ind AS, Redeemable and Optionally Convertible preference shares are seperated inte equity & liability. Thus, as on
the transition date the share capital is reduced by Rs. 17,93,16,400 with a corresponding increase in borrowing of Rs. 10,30,31,45% as liability component. and the
residual amount Is treated as the eguity component of Rs 7,62,84,949 . Interest on liability corﬁponent Is recognised using effective interest method. Interest of
Rs.3,20,81,894 accrued on liability compoanant up to transition date has been adjusted against retained earnings. During the financial year interest on liability
component using effective interest method charged to profit and loss account is Rs 2,14,73,711 subsequently there is increase in Hability component of optionally

convertisle preference shares. This expense is non-cash in nature hence it will not impact cash flow of the company but has increased in loss for the year.

{3.) Employee Benefits:Under Ind AS, Rs 7,02,725 has been regrouped from employee benefit expenses 1o other comprehensive income on account of
remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses as on 31st March 2016

(4.} Provision for Expected sales Return :As per Ind AS18 the company has recognised proviscn for customer return of Rs.1,46,41,666 and recoverable from
customer of Rs. 84,64,708. in respect of earlier year sales against opening retalned earnings.For the financial year ended on March'16 company has reduced sales
and purchases by Rs.1,08,01,398 & 68,4%,697 respectvely for expected sales returns.

{5)The impact in cashflows is majorly on account of non-cash adjustments and regrouping of assets and liabilities.

All other adjsutment are mainly related to classification of assets and liabilites in financial and noa financial nature.

For and on bgt{hal
v

fthe Board ‘fDirecthi%..
”’?:«_,.-A 1{~ a“/’ . ;":; ey

Birectors==<

Place : Mumbai Company Secretary

Date :10th May,2017 .
L
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Fiora Business Support Services Limited (Formerly Westland Limited) <,§ m }
. Annexure A B

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to First provisc to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {(Accounts) Rules,2014)

Statement Containing salient features of financial statement of subsidiaries/Joint ventures/Associates

part " A"; Subsidiaries

_Westland Publication Ltd
31st March, 2017

Rs.

Capital -
Reserves and Surplus -
Total Assets -

Total Liabilities -

investment -
For the year ended
31st March, 2017
Rs.

Turnover 163

Profiti(Loss) Before Tax (441,118)
Provision For Taxation -

(Excess)/Short Provision For Prior -

Years (Net}

Net Profit/(Loss) {(441,118)

Proposed Dividend -

% of Shareholding -

Notes:
1) Westland publications Limited (WPL) was incorporated as a subsidiary of Fiora Buisness Support Services Limited w.e.f.

30th March 2016. FY 2016-17 is thus the first financial year of WPL.
2} WPL ceased tobe a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 23rd November 2016.



Part "B" Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant fo section 128(3) of the Companies Act, 201

3 related to Associate Companies and Joint Venturés; 7

e,

(u3)

Name of Assoclate

For the year ended on
31st March 2017

~ TrentBrandsitd.

For the year ended
on 31st March 2016

Mumbai, 10th May 2017

N Y NNy

Company Secretar!)r

N

o
A

1\ Latost audited Balance SheetDate ____ — — ————|— — 1032017 3103:20
3 Shares of Associate held by the company on the yearend(Nojy | 3049580 Ny
Amount of investment in Associates (Rs.) S R 28016254000 NA
ExtendofHolding% _  _ — ——— ——— a799%|  NA
3. Description of how there is significant influence{Refer Note:2 below) N.A
4. Reason why the assoclate is not consolidated (Refer note 3: below) N.A
5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance 166454764 NA
Sheet(Rs.YY . — I
6. Profit/Loss forthoyear™ B R ]
5-2%5&%“41‘.@@@.@?&% Rs) e [l M _ NA
i Not Considered in Consolidation (183900683) N.A
Notes:
1) Trent Brands Limited became an associate of the Company w.e.f. 27th March 2017.
2) There is significant influence due to percentage (%) of Equity Shares Capital heid.
*Also Includes other comprehensive income.
** profit/(loss) for the year does not include other comprehesive income
3) Accounts of Trent Brands Limited have been consolidated with Trent Limited
For and on behalf of the Board
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